Piedmont Diving and Rescue Association
Minutes of Board of Directors Meeting
March 9, 2008
Meeting held at: Comfort Suites, Lexington, NC Exit 91, 185

Call to Order:

The meeting was called to order by President Calvin Shaw at 2:00 pm. At the sound of
the gavel, Calvin became President of the PDRA with the resignation of Past President Roy
Fielding.

Pledge of Allegiance:
All present at the meeting stood for the Pledge of Allegiance led by Calvin Shaw.
Roll Call of members present by the Secretary:

Calvin Shaw noted Teresa Shaw would be sitting in as Secretary for this meeting,
following the resignation of Freddie Young. Calvin Shaw advised the Board he was seeking a
volunteer for the position of Secretary for future meetings.

Present for the meeting are as follows: Alamance Divers, Carolina Scuba, Central NC, Danville
Aquanauts, Eden Hydro-Jets, Greensboro Dolphins, Inland Sea Divers, Sea World Divers,
University Divers, Uwharrie Divers, Lake Norman Dive Club.

Adoption of Agenda:
J.D. Emerson made a motion to accept Agenda. Garrett Van Dreel 2" the motion.
Approval of Minutes of Board of Directors November 2007 Meeting:

Dolphia Graves asked for a change in the minutes to note $10 increase in membership
dues to go directly toward capital improvements of new quarry or quarries purchased by the
PDRA. Judy Dawson mentioned this was included in the minutes of the February 10, 2008 of the
General Assembly Meeting Minutes. Judy Dawson also stated she wanted to point out the last
Minutes did not appear to be a legal document in her opinion.

All present agreed the $10 increase should go toward the capital improvement of new
quarries and this increase should be effective in 2009.

Randy Graves suggested recording all meetings would be a good idea. He stated he was
accused of recording meetings when he was not. He stated he believes recording meetings would
prevent misunderstandings. Calvin Shaw said he did not care if meetings were recorded. He
stated he does not hide behind notes taken at meetings; he is here for the betterment of the
PDRA. It was suggested by Randy Graves to have digital recordings of the meetings uploaded



into the PDRA website. Robert Rollins noted recording of meetings would allow the Secretary to
refer back to the recordings for notes.

Randy Graves made a Motion for the Board of Directors meeting to be digitally recorded
by the Secretary and available to all members of the PDRA. Scott Brinkley seconded the Motion.

Dolphia Graves Motioned to approve the Minutes. J.D. Emerson seconded the Motion.
Judy Dawson apposed.

Officers Reports:
President Calvin Shaw:

Calvin Shaw noted there was a vacancy in the position of Vice President. Calvin Shaw
stated he was appointing J.D. Emerson as the Vice President of the PDRA. He advised his
reasoning for this decision was based on the fact J.D. Emerson had been the only person besides
himself to run for election of this position. Calvin Shaw noted he had never met J.D. Emerson
before the General Assembly Meeting and had heard good things about J.D. Emerson at the
General Assembly Meeting.

Judy Dawson made a Motion to Table. She asked her statement be recorded in the
Minutes of this Meeting.

Judy Dawson’s statement; “In that
membership as required under the By-Laws, | make a Motion that we lay this question on
the table until members of the Board have an opportunity to obtain input from their club
me mber s.”

Grant Dawson seconded the Motion.
The Table was not approved.

Randy Graves made Motion to approve appointment of J.D. Emerson as Vice President.
Garrett Van Dreel seconded the Motion.

Grant and Judy Dawson opposed the Motion. A vote was taken; 3 opposed, 8 approved.
The Motion was passed to appoint J.D. Emerson as Vice President of the PDRA.

Note: PDRA By-Laws, Article IX, Officers of the Association and Their Duties

Section A. The President shall have the following duties:

Paragraph 4. To appoint a successor for any vacancies that occur among the officers, said appointments to be
confirmed by the Board of Directors at its next meeting.

JD Emerson was appointed by the President to fill the vacated office of Vice President. The remainder of that
term is 1 year and 10 months. President Shaw was within his rights to appoint JD Emerson to fill the vacated
term of Vice President and asked the Board of Directors to confirm.



Calvin Shaw stated as the new President of the PDRA he will be at all quarries on a
regular basis, He stated if anyone has complaints or concerns to call him or email him at any
time. Calvin Shaw stated he will work hard for the members of the PDRA. He stated he joined
the PDRA to dive. Calvin Shaw stated the PDRA has become stagnant and he wants to see that
change. He stated he knows there arley”aniCmadsviitn
Shaw stated he wants to expand the PDRA with the purchase of a new quarry by the end of 2008.

Calvin Shaw stated rules set forth by the PDRA are to be followed and enforced. There
will be changes. He stated he has the knowledge to listen to the members. He stated repairs are
needed and things need to be in proper working order. He stated everyone is here to dive and
have fun. He stated the quarries are not a place to recruit, sell gear and solicit. The quarries are to
train and fellowship.

Calvin Shaw stated he wants to meet with each club to see what they are doing. He stated
competition is a good thing and he wants to get the clubs actively involved. He stated he wants to
see more activities for members to become involved in. He wants to implement clean up days at
the quarries, and plan activities and gave examples of having a pumpkin carving contest at
Halloween and a New Years Eve Polar Plunge.

Calvin Shaw stated members of the PDRA bring concerns, not complaints. He stated
each of these concerns needs to be looked at and addressed. He stated the PDRA clubs should
entertain ideas for special activities. He stated the dive clubs need to get along. He stated the
PDRA is made up of dive club members, not dive shops.

Vice President J.D. Emerson:

J.D. Emerson stated he is looking for more quarries for purchase by the PDRA. He will
keep everyone informed as to what he finds.

Secretary:
Position vacant. Nothing to report.
Treasurer Garrett Van Dreel:

Garrett Van Dreel reported he is in the early discussion phase of obtaining Quicken
hardware to make keeping records easier and more efficient. He stated there are already
automatic payments in place for bills such as electric.

He stated with the expansion of the PDRA he will aide in looking at the demographic location,
exposure and data. He stated looking for two different quarries on opposite ends of the field
would be advantageous.

Garrett Van Dreel stated he has recently had his name added to the PDRA bank account. At this
time there is $23,500 in the bank.

Executive Secretary Mac Robertson:

Mac Robertson advised the PDRA bought JMR quarry in 1993 for $28,500. He stated
there were under 300 members at the time of the purchase. He stated with a lot of hard work the



loan for the JMR quarry was paid off in 100 days. He stated the PDRA paid cash for the Lake
Norman and American quarries, as well as paying cash to have the fences erected around each.
He stated during these purchases everyone in the organization worked together and he would like
to see that return. He stated he wants to see the Officers and Board working together.

Mac Robertson reported for the year of 2007 there were 1216 members of the PDRA. As
of March 5, 2008 there are 626 members. He stated membership is down 109 members
compared to March 7, 2007. He stated he attributes this to having all renewing members having
to submit new applications and statements of understanding.

In 2007 Mac Robertson receives and answered 119 inquiries on the PDRA website. The
question was raised by Grant Dawson as to the geographic location of these inquires. Mac
Robertson reported he believed the majority of inquiries were from the Greensboro, Charlotte
and Virginia regions.

Mac Robertson reported he received 543 phone calls and placed 1217 phone calls on
behalf of the PDRA in 2007.

Mac Robertson reported in 2007 he received 1248 emails and sent 1193 emails on behalf
of the PDRA. As of March 6, 2008 he has received 485 emails and sent 385 on behalf of the
PDRA.

Mac Robertson reported as of March 6, 2008 he has deposited $15,449.00 in the PDRA
checking account.

Mac Robertson brought to the attention of dive club representatives the procedure that
had been formatted to hasten the processing of membership cards and keys. He stated several
dive clubs had begun to use the spreadsheet and several are not. He reported with following this
procedure it had cost the PDRA less money because he had spent less time processing the
memberships. He reported in Jan 2007 he was paid $795, while in Jan 2008 he was paid $485.
He stated this shows the process is more efficient and asked all clubs abide by this procedure.

Unfinished Business:

A Motion was made by Dolphia Graves to vote Xtreme Divers Club. It was seconded by
Garrett Van Dreel. All present in favor.

A motion was made by Dolphia Graves to vote in Aquaholics Anonymous. It was
seconded by Garrett Van Dreel. All present in favor.

New Business:

The issue of having a clause so that the insurance and bonding is paid each year was
discussed.

Discussion was to have the General Assembly vote on budget before the actual calendar
year, versus the first quarter as it is written in the By Laws at this time.



Randy Graves made a Motion to Table the topic of insurance to be discussed at the
General Assembly Meeting. Dolphia Graves seconded the Motion. Table passed; 7 in favor, 6
apposed.

Election Committee:
Bruce Howe, J.D. Emerson and David O’ B r vbluntaered for the Election
Committee

Budget Committee:

Garrett Van Dreel volunteered to be the Committee Chair. J.D. Emerson and Joan
Howe also volunteered.

Treasure Hunt Committee:

Dolphia Graves pointed out there has always been a rotation of the clubs to
sponsor the event. University Divers and Uwharrie Divers volunteered to sponsor the
event. Randy Graves advised the event will most likely occur in September.

Spear Fishing Clinic:

Mac Robertson advised Charles Journey had contacted Wes Eubank to set up a
course at Lake Norman for people to shoot targets. Mr. Journey did not send the agenda
as had been requested. Judy Dawson made a Motion to disapprove this clinic. J.D.
Emerson seconded the Motion. All present in favor.

Clyde Watson Memorial Day:

Jerry Sliker suggested having the Memorial Day in conjunction with the Treasure
Hunt. Mac Robertson advised Clyde Watson had died last year and needs to be celebrated
at American Quarry.

Randy Graves made Motion to have a Founders Day / Treasure Hunt to honor all
of the founders of the PDRA. Scott Brinkley seconded the Motion. All in favor.

Xenia Technologies:

Xenia Technologies, Inc. is offering special discount web hosting for PDRA
members.

Agenda was amended to i ncl Aldiefavprofmmeadsnsni. ng me mb

Mac Robertson advised the program he has in place is user friendly and is an Excel
spreadsheet.

Calvin Shaw stated it would be easier to use the program already in place by Mac
Robertson. J.D. Emerson made Motion to leave this processing policy in place; Garrett Van
Dreel seconded the Motion. All in favor.

Agenda amended. All in favor of amendment.



There was discussion in regards to the locks on the quarry gates should change January
1% since memberships are renewed on this date each year. There was also concern about the
timeliness of each member receiving their keys and cards.

Grant Dawson made Motion to have membership cards mailed to the members as soon as
the appropriate paperwork and monies were received by the PDRA. Dolphia Graves seconded
the Motion. 10 in favor; 1 opposed (reason; will cost the PDRA $500 for the mailings.)

Dolphia Graves made Motion for the locks at each quarry to be changed on January 1 of
each year. Garrett VVan Dreel seconded the Motion. All in favor.

Agenda amended. All in favor of amendment.

J.D. Emerson made Motion to require the Secretary to record all meetings for accuracy of
the Minutes. Joan Howe seconded the Motion. All in favor.

Calvin Shaw stated anyone will be allowed to record meetings if the recorder is in public
View. He stated he i sdingstbuttheSerdetary walldpeardquiresito “ s ecr e
record Board of Director meetings.

Agenda amended. All in favor of amendment.

To have any articles placed in or removed from any quarry, the Manager of the effected
quarry must be notified an in agreement of the change. The Board of Directors is to be notified
by email. Judy Dawson made Motion; Grant Dawson seconded. All in favor.

Instructor Committee:

Jerry Sliker advised all instructors are doing a god job. He stated he has personally been
speaking withi n s t r ateach quarry te see if they have issues. He stated he is receiving
positive feedback.

J.D. Emerson stated he is also receiving positive feedback from instructors utilizing the
facilities.

Dolphia Graves stated the platform at the Blanch quarry is slick.
There are currently 54 instructors.
Quarry Managers:

Scott Brinkley reported he is in favor of removing the old VVolkswagen car at the Lake
Norman quarry needs to be removed. He stated there is a project to get tin donated for the picnic
area. He stated there is a big concern for the gates being left open at night. He stated the last
person out should know to close the gates, but he has found it open. He stated each person
entering should be closing the metal bar and the fenced gate.

Calvin Shaw pointed out that the quarries are considered“ at t r act i ve nui sanc
metal bar is not sufficient to keep out trespassers. The metal bar and gate should be locked at all
times.



Scott Brinkley suggested posting a sign at the entrance to notify each person entering that
both the metal bar and fence gate are to be closed and locked upon entrance to the quarry. He
stated it would be advantageous to have this information posted on the website as well.

Robert Rollins advised a shed is being built at the Lake Norman quarry as a Boy Scout
project.

J.D. Emerson advised there is lumber at the Blanch quarry to redo the dock. He stated the
project as not been completed yet because the quarry manager has not had time to complete it.
He also pointed out the road needs to be graded again.

David O’ B rsiated at the end of March, possibly the 22-28, work may be able to
resume building the dock.

Calvin Shaw asked for hard dates in order for volunteers to be solicited to complete the
project.

Jerry Slicker stated the American quarry has areas around the ditch that have been filled
in and the area around the monument has had a lot of work done to improve the site. He stated
the visibility in the quarry is declining.

Calvin Shaw advised he had a subject willing to donate 10 tons of gravel and possibly
another to donate 4 tons of gravel to the quarries. The people donating the gravel are willing to
haul the gravel to specified locations.

Board of Trustees i Chairperson:

Mac Robertson recommended to the Board of
Emeritus” be conferred on Past President Roy Fi el

Garrett Van Dreel made Motion for the tit!]
President Roy Fielding. J.D. Emerson seconded the Motion. The Motion passed with 7
approving and 5 apposed.

Announcements:

It was suggested to get more information out to the members. No one can complain
volunteers are not available when word is not spread to the members of volunteers needed.

Grant Dawson suggested a Forum on the website, such as NCDivers.com, would be a
good source of information for all members to network with each other and obtain information
about upcoming events.

Calvin Shaw agreed with Randy Graves on the topic of implementing the newsletter for
disbursement to all members. Robert Rollins suggested emailing the newsletter to all club
representatives for disbursement to their club members.

Motion to Adjourn:

Garrett Van Dreel made Motion to Adjourn the meeting at 4:15pm. Diane Weatherford
seconded the Motion.



Schedule for next Board of Directors meeting to be announced.



